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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Washington Presbyterian Church is a simple, well-proportiomned,
white clapboard meeting house with a multi-stage steeple. Except for the
addition of a columned porch about 1890 on the exterior and the replacement
of the old pews on the interior, it is essentially the structure completed
c. 1836. The present auditorium of the church, its oldest part, was built
in 1825 as a simple rectangular building. About 1836 the two-stage steeple
was added along with a vestibule and pulpit. The columned portico was built
considerably later, sometime before the end of the nineteenth century. The
over-all form of the building remains generally that of the eighteenth-
century, Wren-Gibbs type of church.

The entrance to the church is through .a porch that is made up of a
rectangular parapet supported on fluted Doric columns. Beyond this porch
the gabled end of the main body of the building with its oval window and
the facade of the ante-belium structure are clearly visible. An elliptical
fan light and side lights enclosed in fluted pilasters frame the double:
entrance doors. The form af the simple, molded, round-arched windows on
either side of the door is repeated in smaller windows in the two stages of
the steeple.

Above the square base of the steeple with its fine triglyph frleze, a
hexagonal section supports the shingled steeple. On both sides of the
building arched windows of handblown glass, framed by their original shut-
ters, light the interior. The molded frames of these windows are similar to
those of the facade that was added in 1836, suggesting that even though the
church was built in two stages, there was one original plan. The refinement
of proportions and details on both interior and exterior indicates a builder-
designer of some competence despite the lack of any statement in the church
records that would provide his name.

Inside the auditorium is a rectangular space with wainscoted and
pilastered walls. The pulpit with its classical details is set within an
elliptical arched opening. Doors that lead into back rooms on either side
of the pulpit alcove have semi-circular fan lights that repeat the shape of
the windows along the sides. The delicate wooden tracery in the arches of
the windows is similar to that of the oval window in the facade gable. The
interior space and detailing thus echo the classic simplicity of the ex-
terior.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Washington Presbyterian Church is a significant Georgia example of
the New England Wren-Gibbs type meeting house. Frederick D. Nichols in The
Early Architecture of Georgia points out the similarity in its over-all form
between this small church and the earlier Savannah Independent Presbyterian
Church designed by John Holden Greene of Rhode Island. The distinction of
the Washington Church is the result of its well-proportioned and considered
composition of the traditional elements of this form, portico, gabled body,
and steeple of varied profile. Fine details such as the triglyph frieze in
the steeple and pilastered doorway whose elliptical fan light is echoed by
an oval opening in the gable, animate the classical simplicity of its basic
-|form. There are few more important examples of the New England Meeting Housg
type of church in Georgia.® (*William R. Mitchell, Director of Georgia His-
toric Sites Survey, has reported that this is the finest example he has found
in the state.)

In addition to its architectural significance the history of the Wash-
ington Presbyterian Church is linked to the early development of the Presby-
terian movement in northeast Georgia. The church's first minister was John
Springer, who came to Wilkes County in 1788 to open a school and became the
first, minister to be ordained in Georgia. ‘This event, held under the juris-
diction of the Presbytery of South Carolina, took place July 22, 1790, under
"la poplar tree on the Gilbert lands in what is now the northern portion of
Washington. As the Georgia Historical Commissions marker in front of the
church points out, many famous ministers, among them Alexander H. Webster,
S.J. Cassels, Francis R. Goulding, H.W. Petrie, Nathan Hoyt, J.K.S. Axson,
and Thomas Dunwoody, have been pastors of the Washington Presbyterian Church|
Alexander H. Stzphens, befriended by Reverend Webster, and Duncan G. Camp-
bell were lifelong members of this church, as were also many other distin-
guished men and women.

Even though the early Washington Presbyterian Church session records do
|not contain the details of its planning that the architectural historian
‘ like to have, the chronology of its construction has been preserved in

vards historical accounts and in deed records. The first section of the
: c@&ré ~dpuilding went up sometime between July 19, 1825, when Dr. Joel Abbott

»‘coﬁwﬁyéﬁ the land to the trustees,and September 10, 1825, when an agreement
‘ﬁpﬁéa fénice between Abbott's remaining lands and the church lot was con-
c%ghéa;f*Dr. Abbott, who lived at the time in the house on East Robert:Toombs
ter occupied by Robert Toombs, owned the land along the present
East Ropert Toombs Avenue to the street which now runs by the west side of
s\¢pirch. As his donation of $200 to the church he conveyed the present
wrch lot to the trustees, Thomas Terrell, Samuel Barnmett, Andrew G. Semmes
Constantine Church and James Wingfield. The agreement of six weeks later
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required that the trustees maintain a fence between Dr. Abbott's property and
the "lot on which their church now stands." The first construction inc}uded
only the nave, a rectangular structure with two front entrances and rough
benches for seating the men on one side, the women on the other.

In 1827 with a church membership swelled by the addition of the county
church congregations of Smyrna and Providence Churches to 100 persons, Alex-
ander H. Webster was made full-time pastor. His term was to begin in 1828.
Webster, who had come to Washington as rector of the Academy, had been ordained
to the ministry in April, 1824 and had been supervisor of the church from that
time. In October of 1827, however, Webster, who had conducted protracted
revival meetings during the previous summer, died. His brokenhearted congre-
gation buried him between the steps that led down from the two front entrances.
When the vestibule, pulpit and spire were added to the building during Rev-
erend S.J. Cassel's ministry 1832-1837, a slab on a cenotaph was placed in the
vestibule over Webster's grave. This monument still stands inside the entrance
to the church. Shortly before the end of the nineteenth century, the porch
was added to the building and in 1940 Sunday School rooms were put up in the
rear.

The Washington Presbyterian Church remains today an interesting nine-
teenth-century structure with its old organ now electrically instead of manu-
ally pumped, two of the oil lamps that omnce lighted the auditorium on stands
flanking the pulpit and its offering plates made from the wood of the historic
Presbyterian poplar tree. In 1971 it continues to serve the present congre-
gation as well as to provide a visual introduction to the early nineteenth-
century buildings of the East Robert Toombs district.
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